# Einsiedeln- abbey of a thousand years

Autor(en): **Henggeler, P. Rudolf** 

Objekttyp: Article

Zeitschrift: The Swiss observer: the journal of the Federation of Swiss

Societies in the UK

Band (Jahr): - (1957)

Heft 1302

PDF erstellt am: **30.04.2024** 

Persistenter Link: https://doi.org/10.5169/seals-691332

# Nutzungsbedingungen

Die ETH-Bibliothek ist Anbieterin der digitalisierten Zeitschriften. Sie besitzt keine Urheberrechte an den Inhalten der Zeitschriften. Die Rechte liegen in der Regel bei den Herausgebern. Die auf der Plattform e-periodica veröffentlichten Dokumente stehen für nicht-kommerzielle Zwecke in Lehre und Forschung sowie für die private Nutzung frei zur Verfügung. Einzelne Dateien oder Ausdrucke aus diesem Angebot können zusammen mit diesen Nutzungsbedingungen und den korrekten Herkunftsbezeichnungen weitergegeben werden.

Das Veröffentlichen von Bildern in Print- und Online-Publikationen ist nur mit vorheriger Genehmigung der Rechteinhaber erlaubt. Die systematische Speicherung von Teilen des elektronischen Angebots auf anderen Servern bedarf ebenfalls des schriftlichen Einverständnisses der Rechteinhaber.

# Haftungsausschluss

Alle Angaben erfolgen ohne Gewähr für Vollständigkeit oder Richtigkeit. Es wird keine Haftung übernommen für Schäden durch die Verwendung von Informationen aus diesem Online-Angebot oder durch das Fehlen von Informationen. Dies gilt auch für Inhalte Dritter, die über dieses Angebot zugänglich sind.

Ein Dienst der *ETH-Bibliothek* ETH Zürich, Rämistrasse 101, 8092 Zürich, Schweiz, www.library.ethz.ch

# EINSIEDELN — ABBEY OF A THOUSAND YEARS.

By P. Rudolf Henggeler.

We herewith reproduce this article which appeared in the "Catholic Herald" by courtesy of the Editor.

The Benedictine foundation of Our Lady of Einsiedeln was sanctioned by the Emperor Otto the Great on October 27, 947, and in the following years its first church was consecrated.

Thus was inaugurated not only a place of divine worship but also a centre of Benedictine culture. For 1,000 years it was to extend its blessings to the

surrounding world.

A tradition which can be traced back to the 12th century attributes to Christ Himself the consecration of the cell of the holy Meinrad, which became embodied in the first abbey church, and hence Einsiedeln became one of the most famous pilgrimage centres in the Western world. It was here that St. Meinrad lived as a hermit in the ninth century and was murdered by robbers in 961.

The memory of this and later periods is preserved in the abbey library in numerous manuscripts, which were produced by the monastery's own scribes.

In time, however, disturbing influences made themselves felt. The church consecrated in 948 was destroyed by fire in 1029 and was not reconsecrated until 10 years later. In 1226 another fire accident occurred.

#### The Last Monk.

Like many other churches, the foundation had considerable differences of opinion with its patrons and protectors, the Nellenburgers and the Counts of Rapperswil.

Through the Hapsburgers, who succeeded the Rapperswilers, Einsiedeln was involved in much conflict with their neighbours, the Schwyzers, to whom the foundation finally had to cede more than half its

property.

When in 1525 the last medieval monk, Diebold van Geroldseck, went over to Zwingli, the Zurich Reformer — the only inhabitant left in the monastery being the 86-year-old Abbot Konrad von Hoerrechberg — the Schwyzers, who followed the Hapsburgs as overlords, took possession.

From the foundation of St. Gall they brought a new abbot, Diethelm Blarer, who in 1536 began to accept candidates without titles of nobility into the monastery. This opened the way for a new spell of life for the monastery and was put into effect mainly by Abbot Joachim Eichhorn (1544-69). In 1577 the foundation was again the victim of a serious fire.

But in the years after 1600, a second flourishing period of the foundation began, and during the period of the Catholic Counter Reformation, it became the focal point of the religious and cultural life of Catholic Switzerland.

### Many Activities.

Towards the end of the 17th century the number of the community rose to 100. This made it necessary in the first place to rebuild the foundation, and the work was begun in 1704.

In accordance with the plans of a member of a monastery, Dom Kaspar Moosbrugger, there arose the

mighty baroque building (1704-19), the monastery, and in 1719-35, the church, the whole being completed in 1770 by the farm buildings. It is still a monument of a great period.

Towards the end of the 18th century, the monastery was seriously threatened by the invasion of the French revolutionary troops. For a time the monks had to leave their monastery, but they were able to return in 1801 and to carry on with the work of restoration of the very severely damaged foundation.

Gradually it recovered, but not before its existence had again been further threatened by the political events of 1848.

A new lease of life was given to pilgrimages. Of great importance was the fact that the monastery school was further extended and today it has 320 students.

The monks have in their charge a new monastery settlement in the Argentine, 16 parishes in Switzerland and in the Vorarlberg; others are chaplains to convents.

Thus the 180 members of the community today seek to devote themselves in the most diverse fields of activity in the service of God and their fellow-men, as a symbol of which the first abbey church was consecrated 1,000 years ago.





... to the warm and brilliant sunshine of Lake Geneva in September, when the soft, rich tones of late Summer are at their best. Fly Swissair and enjoy Swiss hospitality to the full—aboard a new Swissair Metropolitan equipped with weather-radar for smooth flying and furnished with two-a-side seating only to make it the most comfortable all-Tourist airliner in the world.

Lausanne Fair Sept 7-22

. . . the perfectly timed and perfectly situated trade event for anyone wishing to combine business with pleasure!

Book through your Travel Agent NOW



OFFICES IN LONDON MANCHESTER GLASGOW BIRMINGHAM DUBLIN